United Nations Nations Unies

UNRESTRICTED
GENERAL ASSEMBLEE Aﬁ’*%u%‘é/ 98,28
ASSEMBLY GENERALE e A———

COMMITTEE ON THE PROGRESSIVE DEVELOPMENT OF INTFRNATIONAL
LAW AND ITS CODIFICATION

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE IWENTY-EIGHTH MEETING

Held at Lake Success on Friday, 13 June 1947, at 3 p.m.

CHAIRMAN:

MEMBERS

Sir Dalip Singh

Dr. Enrique Ferrer Vieyra

Mr. A. H, Body

Dr. Gilberto Amado

Dr. Shu-hgl Hsu

Prof. Jesus M, Yepes

Mr, Osman Ebeild

Prof, Henri Donnedieu de Vabres
Dr, J. G.
Dr. Alexander Bramson
Mr, Erlk S joborg

Prof. Viadimir Koretsky

de Beus

Prof. J. L. Briefly
Prof. P. C, Jessup
Dr, Perez Perozo
Prof. Milan Bartos

(India)

(Argentina)

(Australia)

(Brazil)

{China)

(Colombia)

(Egypt)

(France)

(Netherlands)

(Poland)

(sweden)

(Union of Soviet
Socialist Republics)

(United Kingdom)

(United States) ‘

(Venezuela)

(Yugoslavia)

The CHAIRMAN epened the meeting and called upon the delegate of

Colombia, who wshed “0 male a statement,
Prof. Jesus M. YEPES (Colombia) read his delegation's official
statement and asked fer its reproduction in full in the summary record.

"The Colombian delegation did not think it necessary

to press the point brought up in ‘the course of the discussion

concerning the power granted te the I.L.C., to appoint a

Rapporteur not a member of the Commission,

"The Colemblan delegation reguests permission to

reaffirm its vote against this preposal on the grounds that

such a power 1s contrary to parllamentary tradition which

/requires



- AfAC.10/SR.28
Page 2 C

requires a Rappertewr 1o be a member of his Commission in»his own

right. That has been the well-established custom and lawlfor a long

time, |

"Furthermore, my delegation believes that among the meny
Commission members, who have to be recognized authorities on
internationél law working full time for the Commisgion, there must

“ surely be one or more Jurists fully qualified to serve as Rapporteurs
to the General’Assembly.

"My delegation believes that, gince the Rappdrteur ig ex officio
the Commission's spokesman and the liaison between the Commission and
the Aggembly, it would be not only more natural, but perhapé even
more constitutional to ask one of the mewbers of the Commission elected
by the General Agsembly and by the Security Council to perform this
function." '

Dr, Alexander BRAMSON (Poland) shared the views expressed by the
Colombian delegation. ;.

The CHAIRMAN then asked the Committee to continue the consideration of
the Rapporteur'ts Report (Document.A/AC,lO/h3): He read the introduction to
paragraph 19:

‘ "The Committee was also asked by the General Assembly to

study methods of securing the co-operation of the several organs

of the United Nations in the task of the progressive development

of internmational law and its evemtual codification. On this point,

the Committee recommends:”

This text was adopted without discussion.

The CEAIRMAN then vead sub-paragraph (a):

"(a) That the I.L.C. should be authorized, if need be, to
congvlt with any of the orgars of the United Nations in any draft or
project the subject matter of which is relevant to the functions of
the particular organ.” )
Prof. P. C. JESSUP (United States) requested that the ¥nglish text be

changed by ingerting the word "on" instead of the word "in" between the
words "United Nations" and the words "any draft.”

The CHAIRMAN noted this point and declared sub-paragraph (a) adopted.

The CHAIRMAN read sub-paragraph (b):

‘ "(b) That in projects referred to it by a competent organ
of the United Natlons, the I.1.C. should be authorized, if it
“thinks it desirable, to make interim reports to the organ
concerned pribr to submitting ite final report to the General Assembly.
/Thig



5/AC.10/SR.28
Page 3

This resolution was carried by a majority in the Committes, A
minority of the members dissented from it on the grounds that in
thelr view it would not be in accordance with the provisioms of

the Charter for any orgen of the United Netionms other than the

General Asgembly to refer a project to the I.L.c."” ;

Dr. Alexander BRAMSON (Poland), without wishing to reopen the'debate,
recalled that his delegation while sharing the minority view believed that,
in addition to the GeneralvAssembly, thevEconomic and Social Council also
had the right to place questions before the I.L.C. and reguested that this
remerk be recorded in the report. Navertheless, it seemed illogical to
him that the I.L.C., after preparing an interim report for the Economic
and Social Council, should submit a final report to the Asgembly without
walting for action by the Economic and Socisl Council, -

Prof. Milan BARTOS (Yugoslavia) repeated his opinion that while 1t
vas permissible for the IQL.C.>td'Sﬁbﬁit provisional reports to. the
Fconomic end Soclal Council, this did not mean that the Cbuncil could take
thé initiative of suggesting to the I.L.C. which problems it ought to
consider. He requested that his ug;i,pn be noted in the Summary Record.

_ Dr. Alexander BRAMSON (Poland) said that a statement similar to the
one he had Just made appesred in the report under Ttem 9; he did not share
the opinlon of the other delegates who formed the minority.

Prof, Milan B4RTOS (Yugoslavia) endorsed the views of the delegate of
Poland.

The CHATRMAN stated that that view wou1d~be'mentioned in the report
as a footnote, He then rvead sub-paragraph (c¢):

"(¢) That all I.L.C. documents which are circulated to
Governments should also be circulated to the organs of the
United Nations for their information, end that such organs should
be free to supply any data or make any suggestions to the
Commission.

Sub-paragraph (c) vas adopted,

Mr, A. H. BODY (Australia) wished to meke the following rewarks on
the whole of paragraph 19:

"The development of interrational law would be assured and
respect for the rule of law promoted if all the difficult legal
problems coming before the organs of the United Nations were
referred to the Internat*»‘w' "urt of Justice for an advisory
opinion. There were already arrangémehté for requesting such
advice end it might, perhaps, be desiruble for this Committee

[to suggest



A/AG 10/$R.28
Page u

to suggest to the General Assembly the adopﬁion‘qf a short™

regsolution recormending the other orgeng of the United Nations

.to refer to the.International Court of Justice and to request

the Court's advisory oplnion whenever a legal question‘of

special importence arose,” ‘

This questien,would be submitteu to the Assembly by his delegation.

The CEATRMAN read the introduction to paragraph 20:

"20, The Committee wag elso asked to study methods of
enlisting the assistance of such national or intermational )
‘bodies as might aid 1t in the attainment of its objective for
encouraging the progressive development of international law
end 1ts eventual codification. On this point, the Committee
recommends'" , '

Prof. J. L. BRIFRLY {(United Kingdom) (Rapporteur) requested that the
word "for" in the-first line of the gecond page in the English document be
. changed to "of", _ P :

. The introduction was adopted., -

The CHAIRMAN read the first sentence of sub-paragraph (a):

"(a) That the I.L.C, should be authorized to consult any
natiopal or Internmational orgenization, official or npn;bfficial,
on any matter entrusted to 1t, 1f exd when it belleves that such

_& procedure might aid-it in the attalnment of its objectives."

This sentence was adopted. ' ‘ | V/

He then read the second sentences:

"A minority of the memvsic Of the Committee were of the
opinicn that such consultation should be limited to organizations
ineluded in the list referred to in the sub-paragraph follpwing.

This gentence was adopted. g :
He then read. the firgt sentence of sub-par&graph (b)

"That for the purpose of the distribution of I.L.C.
documents the Secretary-General, after consultatidn'with the
I.L.C., should draw up a list of national end 1nternational
organizations dealing with questions of international law.

- This sentence was adopted.
He then read the second gentence: . :
MTIn drawing up this list, the Secretary-ceneral should
~ take- into account the necessity of having the national °
organizations of all the Members of the United Nations
represented on the list." -
~ This gentence was adbpted.
/He then



A/AC 10/SR 28
Yage 5

He then road sub- paragruph (c) :
"Tyat 1n the consultations referred. to in sub—paragraph (a)
‘and in the compilation of the list referred to in subparagraph (b)
of this paragraph, the Commission and the Secretary-General should
take into account the resolﬁtions of the General Assembly and of
the Economic and Social Council concerning relations with
Franco Spain, end that organizations which collaborated with the
Nazis and Fascists should be excluded both from consultation ¢ma
frem the 1ist,"
Sub-peragraph (o) was adopted. ;
The Chairman then read the first gentence of sub-paragraph (d)
' "By a majority the Committee decided to refer specially
to the necesaity and importance of frequent consultation between
the I.L.C. and the organs of tks Pan-American Uaion whose task
is the codificétion of interpationsl law in the Inter-fmerican
System without, however, disreg-rding the claims of othér
systems of law.” '
Prof. Jesus M. YEPES (Colombia) renuested a slight change in this first
gentence. The agencies of the Pan~Arerican Union concerned with 'codification
- were not autonomous and hence it would be necessary to state that
consultations ghould teke place between the I.L.C. and the Pan-American Union.,
Prof. Milan BARTCS (YugOSlavia)‘disagreed, for such on emendment would

~

amount to instructing the I.L.C. to comsult with a politicel Instead of a
‘purely technical zgency.

Prof. Jesus M, YIFFS (Colomoia)/believed thers was some misunderstanding,
The phrase "the Pan-American Unicn" meant not o pOlith&l ugenCy, but simply
the Secretarict of the Union.

Prof. Milen BARTOS (Yugoslavia) did not agree with the view of the
delegate of Colombia. The Congresses of the Pan-American Uzicn played a
politicel role, The words "Pan-American Unlon" could not mean merely the
- Secretariat of the Union, _

' Mr. Osman FBEID (Egypt) reminded the Committee that he was one of the
minority objecting to singling out the Pan-imerican Union for special mention
in the report. The Arab League also constituted a gyetem of law which ought
to be mentioned, at least ag an examnle. The main point was the peculiar>
characterigtics of eVery system of low and he believed accordingly that the
text ought not to be amended. - .

Prof, Henry TONNEDIEU DE VABRES (France) also considered that the btext
gshould remain unchanged.

Prof. Jesus M. YEPTS (Colombia) had not realized thet his amendment would
give rise to discuseion. Accordingly, he withdrew 1t.

/The CHAIRMAN



- D
A/AC.10/8R.28
-Page 6 -

The CEATIRMAN read the last two senterices of sub-parsgraph (d):

"The . representative of the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics,
who wes one of the minority dlssenting from this resolution, desires
it to be recorded that in his opinion this resolution, by singling
out the Pan-American Union for specisl mention, creates for that
Union a privileged position, and thereby vioclates the principle of
equality between natlons and between systems of law. He 1s of the
opipion that the resolution might be taken to imply that the work
of States other than those repreeented in the Pan-American Union

- 18 of less importance for the I.L.C,, and that the I.L.C. need
not maintain ‘equally close contact with such other States."

Prof, Milan BARTOS (Yugoslavia) spoke on e point of order:

This part of sub-paragraph (d) reproduced the opinion of the

Soviet delegate who was not present. A decision on this question

should be deferred untlil the delegate attended. '

Dr. Enrique FERRER VIEYR: {(Argentina) asgreed with this suggestion
provided the discussion was not reopened,

Prof, Jesus M. YEPES (Colombia) felt that no single State should be -

" referred to by name 1n the repbrt That might be in order in the s. .aary
record, but not in the report. |

The CHAIRMAN reminded the Committee that 1t hed been sgreed that in
futuré any delegate'was entitled to put in documents stating his opinions,
which would merely be mentioned in the report.

Prof, Milea BARTOS (Yugoslavia) stated that the point of view of the
minority and not Just that of the Soviet delegate was involved. That might
be mentioned in the report. \

DT.'Ehrique FPRERIER VIEYRA (Argentire) opposed such changes in the report.

The CBAIRMAN saw no reason why this request should xot be acceded to.

Prof. Eanxy DOIRMDYET DE ViRRES (France) did not wish the\réport to
mention the miuority opinion instead of meming the delegate of the TSZR. He
himaelf had voted with the minority, but he had not shared the views expressed
by the dslegate of tho USSR. ‘ -

Dr, Enrique FERRFR VIEYRA (Argentina) thought that the two semtences
should be kept as they stood cr omltted entirely. ‘ |
' Prof, Milan BARMS (Yugoslavia) recalled that four of the rombers of
the minority had shared the opinicn of the delegate of tho USSR.

" Prof, Henry DONNEDIEU DE VABRES (France) prcposed changing the text so
as to indicate that thls was the opinion of four of the members of tx~
ninority. :

/Prof, Jesus M. YFPIS



AfAC.10/5R.28
Page T

Prof, Jesus M. YEPES (Colomhia) proposed that the four members of the
rinority should be mentioned by naume.

Prof. Milan BARTCS (Yugos*avia)‘personally sav no reason why this last
prcgzéal should not be adopted, but reminded the Commlttee that 1t had been
decided that members In a minority should remain anonynoug, If this rule
were charged, the whole report would have to be revised.

Mr, Osman FBEID (Egypt) thought the rule shovld not be changed. ,

Dr. Alexander BRAMSON (Poland) pointed out that he had not himself voted
for including these words, but had abstained,

The CHAIRMAN stated that accordingly the minority consisted of three
delegetes and not four, as had been sald previously.

Frof. P. C. JESSUP (United States) venindod the Ccrmittee that 1t had
been decided that the Chalrmen would send a letter to the Secretgry-Gereral
asking kim to request Member States to communicate thelr observations and ‘
corments on the draft declaration of the rights and duties of States
submitted by the delegation of Penama, The Assigtant Secretary-General had
declarcd that such procedure would be perfectly legal. By virtue of this
precedent, he submitted the following proposal:

"l. The Committee for the Progregsive Development of Internatiohal

Law and ite Codification requests the Secretary-General to tramsait

its Report to the Governments of Members of the United Natior.

at the earliest possible moment. ‘

"2, The Secretary-General is further requested: ;

(2) to call to the speciai attention of Govsrnments to
that part of the Report which containg the proposals for
the nomination and election of mewmberg of an ‘
International Lew Cormisglen; .
(b) to suggest to Govermments that, in enticipation of

- the possible approval of these proposals by the General
Asgenbly they may wish to give consideration to the
desirabllity of belng prepared promptly to make
nominetions for members of the proposed Internaticnal
Law Commissicn in order that the contemplated election
might take place before the adjourrment of the Second

.~ Sesaion." ‘ _ ’

Prof. Milan BARTOS (Yugoslavia) raised an objection: it déleg&tes were
to digcugs thie text ueefully, 1t ought to be presented to them in the twd
working languages and not only 'in Fnglish. | |

The CEAIRMAN vuled thorefors that the Committee would study this btext
later.

/The next



A/i5C.10/SR .28
Pege 8

The next point to be congidered was the section of the Rapporteurts
'report covering ITtem IV of the agenda (draft formulation of the prinbiples
recognined in the Charter of the Nurnberg Tribunel and in the judgment of
the Tribunel) as given in document A/AC.10/46.

ITr. LIANS (Secretary of the Committee) requested that this item be dealt
with in alseparaté report becauvse it had been referred to the Committee in
a geparate resolution of the General Aésembly. He thought thisg procedure
vas the most ccovenlent.

Dr. J. G. DE BFUS (Netherlands) asked whether the same procedure would
be fellowed with respect to other items which had been referred under

different resgolutions. |
' Dr, LIANG (Secretary of the Committee) answersd in the effirmative.

The CHATRMAN noted thet the Commitbtes had accepted 1ts Secretary's
suggestior, He read paregraph 21 of document Af8C.10/46 (parsgraph 1 of
the separate report): »

"By a resolution of 11 December 1946, the General AssembTy
dirccted this Committee Tto treat as a matter of primary
lmportance plans for the formulation, in the context of .a generél'
codification of offences against the peace and security of -
renkind, or of an Internmational criminal code, of the principles

ecognized in the Charter of the Nurnberg Tribunal and in the

,judcrment of the Tribunal.t"

This paragrsph wes adopted. }

The CBAIRMAN then read the first two sentences of paragraph 2 (former ‘
paragraph ) FR '

"The Committee congidered the nature of tke task entrusted
to 1% by this resolution. In particular, it noted that the -

General Agsembly had requested 1t to propose fplans for the

formulation! of the Nurnberg principles, and not itself to

vndertake the actual formulation of those principles which would

cleerly be a t;ak demznding careful and prolonged study."

Dr. Alexander BRAMSON (Poland) reminded the Committee that, while the
first part of this text had been adopted unanimouslj, the second part
beginning with the words "and not itself to undertake" had been adopted by
a majority. Hence he proposed emending the text so as to make it clear that
this vags mereiy a majority recommendation.

The CHATRMAN noted that the delegates agreed to this and proceeded to
read the third sentence:

"The Committee therefore concluded that 1t wes not called

/pon



- A/AB.,10/SR. 28
Page 9 -

upon o discuss the substantive provielons of the.lNurmberg .

" principles and that such a, discuss%on would.be:better entiusted

to the Committee of Experts, the establishment of vhich 1% hed

decided to recommend to' the General Asgembly." Lot

Prof. J. L. BRIFRLY (United Kingdom).(Rapporteur) pmposed that the
words""Committee of Experts" be changed to "I.L.C.".. .. .

Dr. Alexander BRAMSON (Poland) proposed that it should be mede clear
that this resolution had also been adopted by a maJority. Car

Prof. Henri DONNEDIEU DE VABRES (France) said that this was brought out
clearly by the wording of the preceding sentence.i 7

Dr. Alexander BRAMSON (Pola.nd) agreed with the French delega’be and
withdrew his amendment. SR oo

The CHAIRMAN read the last sentenoe of the introduction to paragraph 21

"It recommends therefors that the .5.6. Ehould be invited

to prepare... )

Prof. Milen BARTOS (Yugoslavia) pointed out that ‘bhe recommendations
which followed had been adopted unanimously; ahd’ hence the word "therefore
should be changed to "unanimously. -

The last sentence of the introdudtion has adOPted

The CHAIRMAN then read sub- paragraph (a) My draft convention .
1ncorporat1ng the principles of interna¥icnai law recognized by the Charter
of the Mirnberg Tribunal end senctioded by the Judament of that Tribunal,(1)
and" . .

This sub-paragfaph was adopted.

The CEAIRMAN read sub-paragraph (b): ,

"(p) A detailed draft plan of general codification of -

offences against the peace and securitonf mankind, in gsuch a

manaer that the plan should clearlf iadicate the place to be

accorded to the principles mentioned in sub-paragraph (a) of

this paragraph " .

This sub-paragraph was adopted.

The CHAIRMAN then read the second part of the new paragraph ey

"The Committee further desires to record its. opinion that

this task would not preclude the I.L.C. Erom drafting in due

course & code of international penal law.”

This sentence was adop'bed 4 L : ‘

Prof, J. L. BRIERLY (United Kingdom) (Rappor'beur) noted that there vas
a footnote concerning sub-paragraph (a).l o L :

The CHAIRMAN réad the footnote and said that the delegatee of Poland
"and of Yugoslavia requested that this fbotnota should stand.

/Dr.‘LIANG



- A/AC.J.O/SR 28
Page . 10

Dr, LIANG (Secretary of the Couni ttse) propoSed that in the Engl*sh text
the word. "delegate -be- chenged to ! representatiVe. e

The CHAIRMAN read. the text of the first eentence of paragraph 3 (o014

paragraph 23): B
“The Committee also resolved £ draw the attention of the

General Aseembly to.the fact that to giva effect to the ,

- application of the principles of the Charter of the Nurﬁberg

2. Tribunal and its" Judgment, end to secure the punishment of other
?¢{~Q1nternational crimes which may be recognized ag such by
 international legislation, may render desirable the existence_:
of an interpational Judicial™ authority to exercise Juriediction
over such crimes. |

Dry J. G DE BEUS- (Netherlands) pointed - out that the worde ‘"international
legislation” had been chenged to the words "international multilateral
copventions” at the request of the delegate of the USSR. " '

Dr. LIANG (Secreotary of the Committee) said that thie change had ‘been
-adopted by the majority. : ' S ‘

Prof, Henri DONNEDIEU DE VABRES (Wra,nce) drew the Committes's attention
to the fact that the French text of paragraph 3, as it stood in document
A/AC.10/k46, -d1d not tally with the text previously ndopted The earlier text
.- should be substituted..

' The CHAYRMAN noted. that there was full agrecment op all these pointe
and proceeded to reaed the gsecond sentence of paragraph 3
"The delegates of Fgypt, Poland, the United Kingdom, the '

USSR and Yugoslavia desire to have their dissent from thie

resolution recorded in this report. In their opinion, the question

of establishing en international court falls outside the terme of

reference from the General Assembly to the Committes."

Prof, J. L. BRIERLY (Uhited.Kingdom) (Rapporteur) proposed that the
phrase "part of the” be introduced between the words "t*is" end "resolution
in the first sentence. S ,

Prof, Jesus M. YEPES'(Coiombia)'noted thét,'boﬁtrary to the egfeed rule,
the delegations in a minority had been mentioned by name.

" Prof, J. L. BRIERLY (United Kingdom)‘(Repporﬁeur) proposed that inctead
of naming the delegations forming the mincrity, thé text should say pive."

Prof. Viadimir KORETSKY (USSR) said that a question of principle was

involved and that the dissenting delegations should be specified

The CHATRMAN ruled that the text would accordlngly be left as it stood.

" Dr. LIANG (Seoretary ‘of tﬁe Committee) drew the attention of the membors

- - ' ' DA ' /of the



< . AJAC.10/SR.28
' . Page 11

of the Committee to the fact that the word "resolved," in the first sentence
of the English text of paragraph 3, vas incorrect. Only the General Assembly
peased resolutions, while the Committee merely submitted recommen&ations.
Trherefore, he proposed that the word "resolved" be changed to "decided.”

~ Dr, Enrigue FERRER VIEYRA (Argentina) proposed that tﬁe words
"international court” in the second sentence of paragraph 3 be changed to
read "international Judicial authority," in accordance with the wording of
the first part. ' ' ‘ f !

Prof. Vladimir KORETSKY (USSR) disagreed with such a change.

Dr. Enrigue FERRER VIFYRA (Argentina) sald his reason for proposing the
amendment wes that he did not think this Committee was empowered to dilscuss
the establishment of an international penmal court. o

The CHAIRMAN put the amendment submitted by the delegate of Argentina
to the vote, . - - ' B

Prof, Vliadimir KORFISKY (U“SR) raised g roint of order. ‘The text
represented the minority opinion; therefore the majority cou?d not amend 1%
by a vote. = - . -

Prof. J. L. BRIERLY (Uhlted Kingdom) (Rapporteur) fully agreed with the
delegate of the USbR '

Prof. Milan BARTOS (Yugoslavia) agreed and edded that the present
wording zefiected their discussion on thls question, Both the possibility of
establishing a criminal court within the International Court of Justice and
of establishing a special criminal court had been mentioned. '

Dr. Enrigue FERRER VIEYRA (Argentina) withdrew his amendment.

Dr. Alexender BRAMSON (Poland) moved a vote of thanks to the delegate
of the- United Kingdom, ‘who had discharged his duties ag Bapporteur with such
distincu&on. ' ‘

[

This was accepted by‘acélamation.

Prof. J. L. BRIFRLY (United Kingdom) (Rapporteur) thunked the
repregentative of Poland end his other colleagues.

The CHAIRMAN sald the Committee now came to Item 6 of the agenda.
"Letter of the Secretary-General regarding the Resolution adopted by the
Eccnomic and Social Council on 28 March 19+7, concerning the crime of
gencclde." A number of documents’ concerning the crime of genocldé and in
1articular, a note of the Secretary—General (A/nC 1o/u2/Aad.1) were before

the dolegates. - S RS

Dy, LIANG (Secretary of the'Committee) felt he ought to givé cortain
explanations concerning this document circulated in Fnglish only. "Théﬁ
Secreteriat had prepared a document entitled "Draft Convention op the

| /Prevention



A/AC.10/SR.28
Page 12

Proventlion and Punishment of Genocide end Comments Thereon" (A/AC.10/41),
published in French only for the tlme belng, page 3h‘of which reproduced the
substence of the Secretary-General's note published as document A/iLC/10/42/
Acd.l. For that rdéason the latter document had not been distributed in
French. The Draft Convention had been published in English without comments
in document A/AC.10/42. \

The CHATRMAN gald that in edditlon the representative of France had
gubmitted a memorandum on the subJect of genocide and crimes ageinst humanity
(document A/AC.10/29).

Prof. P, C. JESSUP (United Stotes) requested permigsion to read the
follcwing statement to be fvlly reproduced in the svmmary record:

. "All of the Governments represented on this Committee, cs

well as the Governments of every other Member of the United Nations,

were united in adopting the general Aggemblyts resolution of

11 Decenmber 1946, whereby 1t was affirmed that ‘Genocide is a

- crime under internaticnal law which the civilized world conderms.'!

This wmanimous resolution of the General Assembly reflected the

gense of horror and outrage which the civilized world has felt

as & regult of the atrocities committed by the Nazis and Fagclgts

with»a‘view to the exterminatlon of racial znd religious groups.

As the General Assembly esserted in ite resolution, those crimes
result in 'great losses to humanity in the form of cultural arni

other contributlons represented by these human groups.® Althéugh

these acts of genoclde committed by the Axis Governments constitute

the most recent and most shocking instances of such lawless and
immoral conduct, the world is not oblivious to the fact that they
were not the first instances of this kind in humen higtory.

"In this Committee we are charged with the obligation of
reccumending to the General Assembly plansg for the progressive
development of internatiqhal law and’its eventual codification.

Our debates have clearly revealed our realization of the fact

that interrational law needs to be so extended as to bring within

legal control acts which have hitherto gone unpunisked because

that low has not been adquately developed. The definition of

genocide by an intermational convention, to which it is hoped

that al; States of the world will subscribe, ig an essential(

‘step in this process of the dovelopment of internationel law.

The Government of the United States has frequently expressed its .

convicticn that this step should and must be taken.

. /"The éraft



£,'70.10,/3R.28
‘Page 13

"fhe draft resolu ion on the draft conventlon on genocide

whlch has been presented to our Committee by the representative

of the United Kingdom in document A/AC.10/44 describes the

circumstances which confront‘ﬁs in our consideration of this vital

subJect. Were it possible for this Committee to make a greater

contribution toward the achievement of the goal, which I am
confident we ail seék fo rezch, by adopting some other plan of
~ Procedure, the delegation of the United States would press for

such actlon. HBovever, fcr the reagons explained in the paper

presented by the representative of the United Kingdom, it appears

that the actlon which is there proposed would be mogt conducive

fo therultimate attainment of the objective. Fdr this reason

the delegation.of the United States supports that proposal.” ,

Prof. H. DONNEDITU DE VABRES (Frence) said he was speeking in a double
capacity;r As representative of France he had tabled document A/mC 10/29
As a member of the Committee of Experts he had taken part in the preparation
of the Draft Convention contained in document A/KC.10/41. Perhaps he should
add that he had been one of the judges of the Intermational Militayry Tribumal
of Nurnberg, which had had to deal with crimes against humanity related to
thé crime of genocide. The Statute of London of k4 fugust 1945, which g
established this Tribanal, contained a definition and even a list of crimes.

'against humunity, but in that Statute crimes against humanity are < ogely:
bound up with war crimes. The Tribunal also placed a restrictive
interpretation on_the crimes agalnst humanity by limiting them solely to
vaxr crimes. The Statute and the Judgment of Nurnberg hed served as & basls
for the,Draft Convention prepared by the Secretariat with the assistance of
exports. Actually this was not a draft but, at the utmost, a preliminary
draft or, even more exactly, a programme in which the experts had trled to
collate all the possible soluticns as regards the crime of genoclde, including
the worst éxcesses. It was, so to,speék,?a maximum programme and the authors
of the Convention ﬁould be able to drew from it as they consldered
appropriate, in view of the fact that cqntroversial»questions had been raised,

The f£irst of these questions was how to define the crime of genocide
proper. The draft dlstlngu1shed between three varieties of genoc$de the
physical, the biological, and the cultural,

The next question was how to define ageinst what kind of groups- the
crime of genocide might be conmitted: e.g. racial groups only (for instance,
the Jews), or would religlous, llngulstic and political groups be covered
too?

/There vas



A/AC.30/SR.28 | /
' Page lh -

There was aldo the question of deciding whether éenbcide meant only
positive actlon undertaken by a State, or whether absfantibn amounting to
complicity, on the part of the State would be included. Then therse was the
problem of decldlng who Was liable:  should none but Governments be held
reaponsible for the crime of genoclde, or executivs‘agents as well as any
other persong carrying on propeganda, for instahce; agalnst the Je%s?

Again, what Courts should try crimes of genocide? Should they be the
ordinary State Courts or Internmational Courts gnecially created for this
purpose? | o ‘ ' ' |

He did not think ‘that the Committee hed the necessary time to consider
the gubstance of the problem of gemocide. In Hocument AJAC.10/29; the
French delegatiori had taken & definite position concerning some of the
problems listed above. For the French delegation the issue was to give
modern shape to what had been called humane intervention. The French ,
-delegation conceded the possibility of international prosecution, but only
in cages where the State in question had at least been guilty of wilful
abstention and only ageinst the rulers of such States. Finally, the French
delegation was unable to recognize any but physical genocide.

7 He supported the proposal of the'delegate of the United Kingdom that
the question of genoCidé be referred to thé Economlc apd Social Council,'which:
was to meet on 15 July 19%7. It was practically impossible to consult the ‘
Governments before that date comncerning a Draft Convention, He would however:
like to mote that two other agencies might also take an interest in the
question of génocide. There was, in the first place, the Human Rights
Commission, since the guestion of punishment was not the only one involved .
end the gueétion.of prevention ought to be considered too.: Secondly, there
was the I.L.C., the establishment of which this Committee would recommend,
The Committee had pointed out that the I.L.C. ought to deal with crimes
agaeinst the peace and’sedurity of mankind and these, as had been sta-.d
before, wére cognate to the crime of genocide.' Therefore, the delegate
proposed that the draft resolution’ submitted by the delegate of the
United Klngdom should be amended 80 &8s to mention the two agencies of which

[

he had spoken.

Dr. Alexander BRANSON (Polana) abstained from giv;ng his views on
genocide in general as defined in the Secretariat dreft. Nevertheless he
felt compelled to remind the Committee that genocide was not necessarily
related to war crimes, and that it had ‘been commitbed in the past in times
‘of peace, Poland, and in particular that part of the country formerly under
Prussian rule, had exporienced genocide before World Wer I,  In using the

[vword



oAV S v s -

Page 15

word "ausrotten", Biemarck had meant the so-called physical genocide, but
although they did not go quite so far at the time, the Germans did
‘unquestionably commit cultural gemocide by forbidding not only the teaching
of Polish, but e#en’the use of that language in schools, -

Poland had lost six million citi zens’in the course of World War II:
three million JeWs and Just as many others which proved that thls problem
vas, more than weiely a Jewish problem.

He could not understand the proposal of the delegete of the
" United Kingdom, who had suggested that a letter be sent to the Secretary-
General stating that this Committee could not deal with the question of
genocide. ‘The delegate of the United Kingdom had aiduced three arguments in
sup?ort of his proposal. In the first place, he mentioned the feet that a
resolution of the Economic andbsecial Councll had referred the question to
- thig Ccmmittes, which tas responsible only to the General Assembly and had
received 1ts mandate from the Assembly alone. Secondly, ‘the Economic and
Social Council was to meet very soon, in July 1947; and, finally, that it
vas wel*-nigh impossible to collect all the documentation within such a
short period. The delegate did not believe that the concluslons which the
delegate of the Unlted Kingdcm had drawn from these facts were the correct
ohes._ The Economic and Social Council, b& its resolution of 28 March 1947,
had planned three parallei steps: '

- Consultation with this Committee;

- Consultation with the Human Rights Commission, if feasible;

- Consultation with the Governments for the Coupcil's own information,
‘for admittedly the Governments* answers were not to be submltted to this
Conmittee, but considered by the Council itself.

Hence, by adoﬁting.the’draft resolution submitted by the delegate of
the United Kingdom, this Comﬁittee would deprive the Econcwic and Social
Council of the benefit of its advice, contrary to the Council's wishes as
expressed in.its rEsqLutioh. The Committee had the §utj to disGUsslat
least the general principles contained in Article 1 of the Draft Convemtion,
and to submit its views to the Economic and Social Council, It would be
inexcusable if the Committee refused to answer the question referred to it.

The CEAIRMAN, gpeaking as representative for India, observed that
in the proposal gubmitted by the representat;ve for the United Kingdom
there were two points. In the first place, 1t was suggested that this
Committee, which was set up by and answerable to the General Assembly and
not the Economic and Social Council, might not be competent to examine
a problem referred to it by the Council. This matter of the competence of

| - /the present



A/AC.10/SR.28
Page 16

* the present Committee would have to be decided by the Committes itself.

| In the second place, the United Kingdom representative considered that
if ‘this Committes took up the study of the problem of gemocide this would
only’ result in delay. He could hot follow this argument. The Committee
did not have to study the replies of the Governments and conversely any
proposals by the Committee need not be referred to Governmente.

For the moment he would refrain from discussing the sdbstance of the
problem of genocide,

- Prof. BRIFRLY (United Kingdom) (Rapporteur) wished to reply %o the
objJections which had been raised. This Committes ‘had been get up by the
General Assembly, which could heve referred the question of genocide to it,
'But the General Assembly did not do so and, on the contrary, referred this
vjproblem to the Economic and Social Counoil .Moreover, this Committee
' consisted of representativee of the varioue Governments, which hed hot yet
geen the Draft Convention on the erime of genocide and congequently, had not
been dble to glve thelr instructions. For all these ressons this Committee
had no power to take up the substance of the matter. l “

- Prof, M, BARIOS. (Yugoslavia) said his country was one of those which
had suffered most from genocide. Nevertheless, the Yugoslav Governmen+

noted with concern that neither it nor the Governments of other countries
which had suffered most from genocide had been'consulted, and that this
draft had been ﬁrepared by three non-governmental experts, Before anything
‘was done, the Governments of countries which had suffered most and othere{‘
should be consulted, Genoclide was nothing new and wag not neceeeariiy
comnected with war crimes. N6 Draft Convention could be prepared until after
‘e thorough"study on the spot where the crime of genocide had been comuitted.,
' "The explanations accompanying this Draft ConventionAseemed to imply a
dental of the existence of cultural genocide. But, in his cowntry, the mers
“fact of holding a degree had been sufficient to condemn the holder of 1t \
to death, - '

"He concluded by signifying egreement with the. Rapporteur as to his
bonclusion, but as to the’eubstance he agreed with the Chalrman. This
Committee was actually not empowered to- deal with. genocide, but it ought to
stress that thig problem was of the greatest importance and that it was
extremely grave.

Prof, H. DONNEDIEU.DE VABRES . (France) said he felt bound to protest
against the way in which the delegate of Yugoslavia had interpreted the
opinion which he had given as a member of the Ccmittee of Experts. As &
Judge on the Nurnberg Tribunal, he denounced the odious and painful deeds

/vwhich some



AfAC.10/sR.28
Page 17 ’

vhich some describe as "cultural gemocide," .But it was not .for the Committee
.to condemn but toc establish a new offence and define the acts covered by it.
The Cormittee of Experts had done their best and prepared a‘texé comprising
all the possible solutions; all the future legislator would have to do wes
to-draw upon it at will. ‘ |

 Dr. Alexander BRAMSON (Poland) emphasized that the Economic and Social
Council was one of the princlpal agencies of the United Nations. Accordingly
the Committee ought to_comply with any of the Council's wishes, all the more
go since the matter had been referred to the Council by virtue of an
Assembly resolution. Thus the quesci.. whether the Commitfee was competent
was answered in the afflrmative. |

He wished to add, in reply to the delegate of Yugoslavia, that any
Committee of Experts was composed of representatives of Governments, a fact
vhich did not prevent it from debating. Undoubtedly, this Committee was not
composed of representatives with full powers to sign e convention, but it was
fully empowered to answer and advise the Economic and Social Council as
requested. ‘ ' ]

He asked that his stetement be recorded in the summary record.

Prof. M. BARTOS (Yugoslavia) in reply to the French delegate, read the
following passage from page 47 of document A/AC.10/41 which gave the views
of that delegate as a member of the Committee of Experts:

"Mr. Donnedieu de Vebres and Mr, Pella stated that *cultural? genocide
~ represented too far-reaching an extension of the concept of genocide
and would lead to the reccnstruction, behind the screen of genocide
of the old idea of protection of. minorities, which was designed to

‘:meet different needs.

Dr, LIANG (Secretary of the Committee) wished to make & few remarks.

In the first place, the question of genocide had been considered by the
Sixth Commlttee of the General Assorhir, which recommended that the Economic
and Soclal Council take up the study of this problem. This recommendation
was accepted by the General Assembly and incorporated in the Lggenbly's
resolution., Therefore, 1t was clear tha+ the Assembly had referred this
problem to the Economic and Social Council and not to this Committee, which
vas esteblished by virtue of another resolution.

Secondly, in point of fact, there was no Committee of Experts properly
go called, As a result of the resolution adopted by the Economic and Social
Council three experts had‘simply been invited to study the problem of
genocide, These experts did not constitute a committee or commission. They
had been appointed ag Individuals by the Secretary-General by reason of thelir
personal competence.

/Lestly



A JacC .18/53 .28
Page 1

Lastly, the Draft Convent*on on the crime of genocide had been prepared
by the Socretafjat wzth the help of these three experts. The draft had been
preparea by the Human Rights Division of the Secretariat, with the belp of
one mcmber-cf the Section on the Development of International Law and its
Codification, .

Prof, YFPES (Colombia) wished to make a statement on behalf of his
‘delegation. As the Government of Colombia congidered the crime of genocide
to be of the greatest importance, '.: - ~uested his statement to be included
‘verbatim in the summary record. He said:

o "The Colombian delegation congiders the problem under

discussion at the present time to be of the greatest importance,

though not because we‘fear lest our country might one day become

the scene of actions knowm as genocide. Our humanltarlan

attitude, and the welcome which we extend to men of all races,

'.of all religlons'and of all languages hag placed us beyond any
feefs'in this respect; we have elways condemned all persecutlion

for racial, religious or pollitical reasons., At the Pan-American

Confe?ence; held at Lima invi938, we supported and voted for the

reeolnfion condemning the persecutions then raging in Europe.

At théﬂGeneral Assembly‘last_year, the Colombian delegation was

noted for the determination with which 1t worked for clear ‘

" condemmation of the crime of genocide. This shows you that it is
our very ‘sincere hope that the Convention on this matter, prepared
'by emlnent experts such as our colleague, Prof, Henri Donnedieu de Vabres,

Mey one day in the near future become part and parcel of international

law, Unfortunately, since this Draft Convention - end I stress the _
4 fact thmt this is a Draft Ccnven*‘on ard not only a preliminary draft -

hes been presented to us so late, and, on the other hand, because of
the great importenCe of this Draft Convention, which our Governments
~ought to study in great detell before coming to any declsion,. we are
pnevented'from broeching the substance of this problem. We might,
perhaps, have a'general discunsion on genocide,'and leave the
detailed study of it to the proJected International Law Commission.

"One last point which I should like to mention, if only very
briefly, is that the Pan-American Union has already taken the
initiative in this matter. I spoke a moment agec of the resolution,
adopted by the Lima Conference in 1938, Here is the text of this
fesolution: . N |

"Art. 36: The Republi;e‘represented at the
Eighth International Conference of American States declare
/that,



A/4C.10/sR.28
Page 19

that, in accordanse with the fundamental principles of
equality before the Law, any persecution on account of
recial or religious motives which makes it impossible-

for a group of human beings to live decently is

contrary to the political and Juridical systems of
America,!

"This shows that, up to a certain point, we are pioneers in

this field and that, in offering our support to any plan to

condemn and punish the crime of genocide, we are only continuing

to carry out an American tradition of which we may be Justly

proud. TFinally, I wish to say that we are voting for the proposal

gsubmitted by the delegate of the United Kingdom solely in view

of the present circumstances. But, at the same time, we wish

to state that we hope that this question will be decided at the

earliest possible date."

Mr. DE BEUS (Netherlands) stated that his country, which had also
guffered greatly from the evil described as genocide, attached the greatest
importance to this problem. The Netherlands lost 265,000 lives during the
last war, at least three-fourths of them through extermination. Accordingly,
his Government believed that it was abgolutely necessary to conclude an
international convention on the crime of genocide. Nevertheless, like the
Rapporteur, he thought that this Committee was not empowered to consgilder cn
problem, but belng composed of Government representatives, had been
instructed to explore problems of procedure only not the substance of the
law. On behalf of his Government he requeated this Committee to refrain
from considering the substance of the problem, which was to be studied by
other competent agenciles, iﬁ particular the I.L.C., the establishment of
which this Committee had recommended. o

The CHAIRMAN noted that various arguments had been advanced for the
point of view that thls Committee should not study the substance of the
problem of genocide. It had been saidl that this Committee was incompetent
as 1t had been created by the General Assembly and not by the Economic and
Social Council. Further it had been said that the Committeo wag intere-
governmental and that the representatives had not received ingtructions
from their réspective Governments. And then time was running short. Speaking
as representative for India and not as Chairman, he requested the adjournment
of the debate until the following day. The Committee would then have to
gettle on the crucial gquestion of its competence. Still speakihg as
representative for India, the Chalrman reserved the right to take the floor
on the substance of the question.

The meeting rose at 6 p.m.

- -



